HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 21, 2005
2:17 p.m

CALL TO ORDER

Vice-Chair Stoltze called the House Finance
neeting to order at 2:17:39 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Jim Holm

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative M ke Kelly
Representative Carl Mses

Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch

VEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

Committee

Carol Coneau, Superintendent of Schools, Anchorage; Steve
Weaver, Assistant Attorney General, Legislation & Regul ation

Secti ons, Depart nent of Law; Randy Ruaro, Attorney,

Legislation & Regulation Sections, Departnent of Law,

Suzanne Cunni ngham Staff, Co-Chair Meyer

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

None

SUMVARY

HB 88 "An Act relating to certain weapons offenses
involving mnors; to aggravating factors in

sentencing for certain offenses conmtted agai nst

a school enployee; and providing for an
date."

effective

CSHB 88 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Committee with a
"no recommendation” recomendation and wth an
indeterm nate note by the Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services, and an indetermnate note by the

Departnent of Law.

House Fi nance Committee 1 03/21/05 2:17 P. M



2:17: 58 PM

HOUSE BILL NO 88

"An Act relating to certain weapons offenses involving
mnors; to aggravating factors in sentencing for
certain offenses commtted against a school enployee;
and providing for an effective date.”

[ House Bill 88 was previously heard on March 17, 2005.]
2:18:41 PM

STEVE WEAVER, ASS| STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, LEG SLATION &
REGULATI ON SECTI ONS, DEPARTMENT OF LAW offered to answer
questi ons.

CAROL COVEAU, SUPERI NTENDENT OF SCHOOLS, ANCHORAGE, spoke in
support of HB 88. She referred to several assaults against
school district enployees in the Anchorage School D strict

this past year. Vice-Chair Stoltze asked what the
puni shnment was in those instances. M. Coneau replied that
stricter punishnment for assaults on teachers are needed. |In

response to a question from Vice-Chair Stoltze, M. Coneau
deferred to the Departnent of Law to determne suitable
puni shnent .

2:24: 49 PM

RANDY RUARO, ATTORNEY, LEGQ SLATION & REGULATI ON SECTI ONS,
DEPARTMENT COF LAW explained about m sconduct involving
weapons in the second degree. He referred to a letter in
the nenbers’ packets from District Attorney Bob Linton
regardi ng automatic waivers of juvenile offenders (copy on
file.) He pointed out that getting a discretionary waiver is
nearly inpossible for a juvenile even in nurder cases.

Representative Wyhrauch asked if there are federal |aws
that achieve what this state law intends to do. M. Ruaro
said it depends if the shooting or event occurs on school

gr ounds. In that case a federal law would apply.
Representative Wyhrauch requested nore information about
related federal |[aws. M. Ruaro agreed to provide that

i nf ormati on.

2:29: 03 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked for nore informati on about | esser
categories of offenses and juvenile waivers.

M. Ruaro explained that the only type of a possession
of fense that would fall under second-degree is for a person
who has been previously adjudicated a delinquent for an act
that woul d have constituted a felony, and then they possess

House Fi nance Committee 2 03/21/05 2:17 P. M



a weapon on school grounds or near a day care center. There
were only 4-6 successful waiver cases a year.

2:32: 09 PM

Representative Croft asked why sone of the nurder cases are
not on the unclassified felony list. M. Ruaro said he does

not know. Representati ve Croft expressed interest in
changing the statute to “pull in nurder cases” rather than
target practice cases. M. Ruaro opined that discretion

woul d be exercised on the part of the prosecutor.

2:34: 48 PM

SUZANNE CUNNI NGHAM  STAFF, CO CHAIR MEYER, expl ained that
the automatic waiver provision only applies when a mnor is
at | east sixteen years old. Representative Croft said that
makes sense.

Ms. Cunni ngham revi ewed the status of the bill

Representative Croft reintroduced Anendnent 2. He MOVED to

ADOPT Anendnent 2, to delete line 30 on page 3. He
explained that he is not opposed to how Section 4 targets
specific bad conduct with guns, however line 30 is not
narromy tailored at this point. He opined that the renova
of line 30 still allows the bill to retain its focus on the

wor st conduct for automatic waiver.
Co- Chair Meyer OBJECTED for purposes of discussion.
2:38:18 PM

M. Ruaro explained that omtting line 30 would delete the
crinme of possessing a gun at a drug deal, the crinme of being
found a delinquent of a felony and then possessing a gun on
school grounds or at a day care, and the crine of shooting
at a building from coverage of the automatic waiver
provi si on. He maintained that those offenses are serious
and he opposed Anendnent 2.

Represent ati ve Hawker rai sed concerns about AS 11.61.195 and
the definition of dwelling. He suggested cleaning up that
section rather than deleting line 30. He spoke in
opposition to the anmendnent.

Co- Chair Meyer concurred.

Representative Wyhrauch asked if there is a crinme that
cannot be prosecuted if line 30 is deleted. M. Ruaro
expl ained that the purpose of the automatic waiver is to
allow for certain serious offenses to be brought into the
adult system The difference would be between prosecuting
as a juvenile where jurisdiction ends at age 19, or as an

House Fi nance Committee 3 03/21/05 2:17 P. M



adult. He discussed a retaliatory shooting case and how t he
provi sion would apply in that case.
2:42:10 PM

Representative Croft acknow edged that the bill does a |ot
of good, especially Sections 3 and 4. However, in the
findings section, Section 2, it says that 29 percent of nale
students reported having carried a weapon. Represent ati ve
Croft suggested that that is not necessarily a bad thing. A
| ot of students use guns for hunting and for what they were
intended to be used for. He stated that he does not want to
wite laws that unintentionally crimnalize and that rely on
prosecutors to not charge in those areas. He referred to a
case in None. He suggested that the commttee take a
further ook at AS 11.61.195 so as to not unintentionally
crimnalize certain conduct.

Co-Chair Meyer pointed out that sonme of Representative
Croft’s concern about bias was corrected by deleting Section
2.

Co- Chai r Chenaul t agreed wth Representative Croft’s
analysis of (A) of Section 2. He noted that (B) concerns
hi m nor e.

2:47: 58 PM

Representati ve Wyhrauch observed that the figure “29.8 of
mal e students” cane from the *“Alaska Youth Ri sk Behavior
Survey 2003” on page 8 (copy on file.) The survey gives no

context for the data collection. He synpathized wth the
intent of Amendnent 2 and the unintended consequences of
| eaving line 30 in the bill. He wondered if House Judiciary

di scussed this area.

M. Ruaro said there are approximately ei ght cases a year of
this type of serious crine against juveniles, not target
shooters, but serious crines. He stressed that given the
| ow nunber of cases and the seriousness of them the
comm ttee should vote no on Anendnent 2.

Representative Hol m gave an exanple of possession of a gun
by a hunter who also was involved in a drug deal. M. Ruaro
explained that the prosecutor has conplete discretion on
whet her to charge as an automatic wai ver offense or not.

2:51: 28 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked if it ever happens that a
prosecutor overcharges in order to scare a defender. M.
Ruaro said yes, but filters are built in such as the
di scovery process, the grand jury process, the jury, and the
j udge.

House Fi nance Committee 4 03/21/05 2:17 P. M



Representative Croft reviewed AS 11.61.190(a)(1) and (a)(2),
and pointed out that the ideas discussed today remain in the
bill and are not affected by deleting |ine 30.

Representative Kelly asked for a response from M. Ruaro

M. Ruaro disagreed and explained that the elenents of AS
11.61.195 include possession of a gun in a drug deal,
possession of a gun after being convicted of a serious crine
at a school, and retaliatory shootings.

Representative Kelly shared a personal hunting experience.

2:55: 50 PM

M. Ruaro repeated the systemof filters for those kinds of
situations; a whole system of fall backs.

Representative Kelly explained that he does not |ike any of
the process, but added that he has no use for a system of
| aws that would not protect citizens from drug shootings.
He related a story about a nmurder in his district. He said
he is afraid of harm ng soneone if he votes to take line 30
out .

M. Ruaro related that drug deals are <covered in AS
11.61.190(a)(1). Drugs and guns don’t mx is the nessage in
the second provision. The other nessages are if convicted
of a felony, don’t carry a gun at school and don’t shoot in
anger at a house.

3: 00: 56 PM

A roll call vote was taken on the notion to ADOPT Anendnent
2.

IN FAVOR: Croft, Foster, Holm Joule, Kelly Mses, Stoltze,
Weyr auch

OPPCSED: Hawker
Co-Chairs Chenault and Meyer were absent fromthe vote.
The MOTI ON PASSED (8-1).

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked if the short title fits the context
of the bill. M. Ruaro replied that the bill has changed

Vice-Chair Stoltze suggested that the title be witten to
conformto the revised bill

Representative Foster MOVED to report CS HB 88 (FIN) out of
comm tted wth i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

Co-Chair Meyer OBJECTED for discussion purposes. He asked
what the result of the discussion about the title was.

House Fi nance Committee 5 03/21/05 2:17 P. M



Vice-Chair Stoltze repeated that the short title would be
witten to reflect the contents of the bill.

Co-Chair Meyer renoved his OBJECTI ON.

Representative Weyhrauch OBJECTED for discussion purposes.
He commented that the effects of the bill wll cost the
state noney and will require a new fiscal note.

Representati ve Weyhrauch wi t hdrew his OBJECTI ON.

Representative Joul e OBJECTED. He agreed that there would
be nore cost to the state.

Representative Wyhrauch OBJECTED again, voicing concern
about the zero fiscal notes.

Representati ve Hol m OBJECTED. He MOVED to ADCPT two new
House Finance Conmmittee indeterm nate fiscal notes.

Representati ve Weyhr auch OBJECTED for pur poses of
di scussi on. He asked for the definition of “indeterm nate
fiscal note”.

3:07: 05 PM

Representative Croft defined indetermnate fiscal note. He
agreed that the bill would cost nore noney.

Representative Hawker clarified that there “may or nmay not”,
dependi ng on circunstances, be costs incurred by this bill.

Representative Wyhrauch noted that there are two zero
not es. Representative Holm said his intent was that the
fiscal notes should go back to both departnents for review

3:10: 26 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze stated that no OBJECTI ONS are nmi nt ai ned.

CSHB 88 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Committee with a "no
recommendati on” recomrendation and with indeterm nate note
by the Departnent of Health and Social Services, and
i ndeterm nate note by the Departnent of Law

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:11 PM

House Fi nance Committee 6 03/21/05 2:17 P. M



